
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
April 1, 2019 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, April 1, 2019 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to attend all 
meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a Public Hearing is 
scheduled. 

a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. March 18, 2019 City Council Minutes 
b. OLCC – “Limited On-Premises” Application for Roth’s IGA Foodliner, Inc. 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in nature and 
for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are 
then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will 
then poll the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda 
is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, 
resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. 
Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 
accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
April 1, 2019 

BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
a. Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation and Presentation 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – None  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
City Council Goals          Action 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell and Sara Singer Wilson 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 1029, Amending Land Use Code Establishing Standards for  Action 
Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Report of Ordinance No. 1019 Review Committee and Recommended Code  Action 
Amendments 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Award of Contract for 2019 Regis Street Improvement Project    Action 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Award of Contract for Water Treatment Plant – Slow Sand Filter Resanding Project Action 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – None  
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
 
 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
April 1, 2019 

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – April 15, 2019 
a. Public Hearing – Zone Map and Code Amendments 
b. Council Rules 
c. Transportation System Plan Update Presentation 

 
ADJOURN 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
April 1, 2019 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
APRIL 2019 

Monday April 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 2 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday April 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday April 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday April 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday April 22 Main Street Open House 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday April 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MAY 2019 
Monday May 6 Budget Committee TBD Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 7 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday May 13 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Tuesday May 14 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday May 15 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday May 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 28 Public Safety Commission 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

JUNE 2019 
Monday June 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday June 4 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday June 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday June 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday June 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday June 24 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JULY 2019 
Monday July 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday July 2 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday July 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday July 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday July 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday July 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 4 
March 18, 2019 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

March 18, 2019 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 9:56 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Paige Hook Keith Campbell, City Manager 
Councilor Christopher Molin Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor David Patty Janna Moser, Library Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 Andy Parks, Financial Consultant 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, 

Bias, etc. 

 
None.  
None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Samantha Jones 

 
Ms. Jones shared concern with proposed changes that will 
be recommended by the Ordinance No. 1019 Committee.  

Consent Agenda 
a. March 4, 2019 City Council Minutes 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by Councilor 
Patty, to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion 
passed 5:0. 

Business from the Mayor 
Committee and Commission Appointments 
a. Public Safety Commission 

• Dave Valencia 

b. Library Board 
• Diana Maul 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by Councilor 
Hook, to ratify the Mayor’s appointment of Dave Valencia to 
the Public Safety Commission and Diana Maul to the Library 
Board. Motion passed 5:0. 

Public Hearing 
Ordinance No. 1029, Amending Land Use Code 
Establishing Standards for Recreational Vehicle Parks 
and Campgrounds 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 

 
 
 
 

b. Staff Report 
 

c. Questions from the Council 

 
 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:07 p.m. Councilor 
Hook was on the Planning Commission when a developer 
was proposing a Recreational Vehicle Park but it will not 
affect her decision. 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. 
 
Council questions on temporary occupancy, enforcement of 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 4 
March 18, 2019 

 
 
 
 

d. Public Testimony 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

e. Questions from the Council  
 
 
 
f. Staff Summary 

 
g. Close of Hearing 
 
h. Council Deliberation 

 
 
 
 

i. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1029 

those exceeding the 180 day rule, viewing records for those 
staying at the parks or campgrounds, and other communities 
used to develop the standards.  
 
Mark Grenz, Multi/Tech Engineering provided a document 
for the record and spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1029. 
Council questions in relation to Mr. Grenz’s testimony. 
Dan Morgan, 2195 Cardinal Avenue, provided a document 
for the record and shared his concerns over the proposed 
code. 
Bill Berman, 4490 Silverton Road, provided his comments 
and concerns with Ordinance No. 1029 and responded to 
earlier questions asked by the Council. 
 
Council questions and discussions of landlord/tenant laws 
for this type of use, the 180 day limit, picnic tables, and 
speed limits in the park. 
 
Mr. Fleishman provided a staff summary.  
 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 8:21 p.m. 
 
Council discussion on changes to the proposed code 
including the parking space requirements, length of stay at 
the park, requiring manager to keep a log available to the 
City quarterly for review of those staying at the park.  
 
Motion from Councilor Patty, seconded by Councilor 
Quigley, to approve Ordinance No. 1029 with the following 
modifications: 

• Require park manager to keep a log that will be made 
available to the City for quarterly audits. 

• Require at least one parking space next to the 
community building. 

Council Discussion: Councilor Hook doesn’t feel the proposed 
modifications meet the items discussed and it needs to be 
looked over by the City Attorney. Councilor Molin felt it’s a 
well thought out ordinance that offers flexibility. Councilor 
Ohrt questioned whether the flare should be incorporated. 

Motion passed 4:1 (Hook). 
Unfinished Business 
Appointment of Council Liaisons 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Mr. Campbell reviewed the staff report. 
Council discussion of which tract they’d like to volunteer for. 
Motion from Councilor Molin, seconded by Councilor Hook, 
to appoint the members of the Governing Body to the 
following liaison positions: 
 
• Education, Social Services, Governmental Agencies – 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 3 of 4 
March 18, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Parking Restrictions in the Village Creek Subdivision 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

Councilor Ohrt 
• Economic Development and Housing – Councilor 

Hook 
• Public Safety and Environmental – Councilor Patty 
• Community Relations and Outreach – Councilor Molin 
• Transportation and Infrastructure (or Public Utilities) 

– Councilor Quigley 
• Fire District – Mayor Porter 

 
Motion passed 5:0. 
 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. Councilor Hook 
inquired about more detail from meetings held by staff to 
review the parking options.  

New Business 
Water Treatment Plant Slow Sand Filter Memorandum 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
 
 
 
 
 
City Council Goals 
a. Staff Report – City Management Team 

 
b. Council Deliberation 
 
 
 
c. Council Decision 

 
 
Mr. Ludwick reviewed his staff report and PowerPoint 
presentation. Mr. Parks shared the financial impacts of this 
project. Council questions and discussions surrounding 
funding, contingency funds, lack of rate increases, and the 
policy being put into place by staff.  
 
 
Mr. Campbell reviewed the Council report.  
 
Councilor Hook stated the goal titled “Improved City 
Processes” was omitted from the final list.  
 
Staff will review and bring back at a future Council meeting. 

Staff / Commission Reports None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public None. 
Business from the City Manager 
a. OAWU Best Surface Water Award 

 
Mr. Campbell recognized and congratulated the Public 
Works staff for being awarded the OAWU Best Surface 
Water Award for the third year in a row. 

Business from the Mayor None. 
Business from the Council Councilor Hook raised concerns regarding the Village Creek 

“No Parking” discussion.  
 

Future Agenda Items – Monday, April 1, 2019 
a. Child Abuse Prevention Proclamation 
b. Ordinance No. 1019 
c. Council Rules 
d. Regis Street Bid Award 
e. Water Treatment Plant Sand Filter Replacement Award of Bid 
 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 4 of 4 
March 18, 2019 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 1ST DAY OF APRIL 2019, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
OLCC Application  Page 1 of 2  
April 1, 2019 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE: April 1, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Liquor License- “Limited On-Premises” Application – Roth IGA 

Foodliner Inc. 
  
 

ISSUE: 
“Roth IGA Foodliner, Inc.” located at 1770 Shaff Rd.  They have applied to the City and OLCC to 
add to their current OLCC license a “Limited On-Premises sales” license. The license application 
is to sell “kegs,” dispense for growler refills and possibly in the distant future allow for patrons 
to order a drink in the deli seating area.  The growler refill station will be located next to the 
store check-out area. 
 
BUSINESS NAME:  Roth IGA Foodliner, Inc. 
    177 Shaff Rd. 
    Stayton, Oregon   97383 
    B:  503-769-5999 
     
PRIMARY OWNER(s):   Michael Roth 
    4895 Indian School Rd NE 
    Salem, OR 97305 
         
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the recommendation of the Stayton Police Department to forward this application to the 
Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) with a recommendation for approval. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The location is zoned for this type of business which is a “commercial general” zone.   
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS: 
We have conducted a background investigation of the business.  We have found nothing out of 
the ordinary. 
 
Based on the application and background investigation, I find no legal authority to 
recommend denial of this application. 
 



 
OLCC Application  Page 2 of 2  
April 1, 2019 

MOTION(S): 
 
No Motions are needed as this is a consent agenda item. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
 
 



City of Stayton 
Administration • Finance 

362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 
Phone: (503) 769-3425 • Fax (503) 769-1456 

 

POLICE 
386 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3423 
 FAX (503) 769-7497 

PLANNING 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2998 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

PUBLIC WORKS 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2919 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

WASTEWATER 
950 JETTERS WAY 

STAYTON, OR 97383 
(503) 769-2810 

FAX (503) 769-7413 

LIBRARY 
515 N. FIRST AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3313 
FAX (503) 769-3218 

 

City of Stayton, Marion County, Oregon 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
This matter came before the City of Stayton Mayor and Council at its regularly scheduled 
meeting of April 1, 2019, to proclaim April as Child Abuse Prevention Month. 
 
WHEREAS, every child deserves to live in a safe, loving and caring family environment; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2017 there were 11,077 reported victims of child abuse and neglect in Oregon, 
and of those reported cases, 1,047 were victims in Marion County, and 47 of those victims were 
from Stayton; 
 
WHEREAS, we endeavor to join together as individuals, organizations, and government agencies 
to prevent child abuse in our county by providing opportunities to educate, train, and support 
caregivers by raising awareness of relevant topics, including child development, basic-care 
skills, discipline strategies, and goal-setting for parents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by strengthening families and providing safe, stable, and nurturing environments 
that are free from violence, abuse, and neglect, opportunities are created for children’s optimal 
growth and success, ensuring a secure future for our communities, where the needs of children 
are a priority and the needs of families are met. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton Mayor and Councilors asks everyone to join together in 
protecting our children, and do hereby proclaim April 2018, as 
 

“CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH” 
 

Dated at Stayton, Oregon, this 1st day of April, 2019. 
 
 

             
Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  City Management Team 
 
DATE:   April 1st, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  City Council Goals 
  
ISSUE 

Should the Governing Body adopt the proposed 2019-2023 City Council Goals included in the 
Retreat Summary Report?  

ENCLOSURE(S) 

• Stayton City Council & Management Team Retreat Summary Report 
• North Plains Placemat Graphic Sample 
• Tualatin Placemat Graphic Sample 
• Memo from SSW Consulting 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

On Saturday, February 2nd, City Council and Management team met to identify goals for the 
next for a Goal Setting Session with consultant Sara Singer Wilson of SSW Consulting. The day 
consisted of team building, an environmental scan, and setting City Council goals.  

As a follow-up to the session, Sara again met with City staff on Tuesday, February 26th to 
develop action items for the short-term, mid-term, and long-term of each Council identified 
goal.  

At the March 18th meeting the matter was tabled as questions arose about the formulation of 
the goals. A memo has been included to address the concerns and Sara Singer Wilson will be 
available at the meeting to discuss the process and outcomes of the proposed goals. 

Once the Council goals are adopted, Sara will be providing the Council with a Placemat Graphic 
that will be at each seat on the Council dais. Staff has enclosed two samples of Placemat 
Graphics from North Plains and Tualatin. 

MOTION(S) 

1. Motion to adopt the 2019-2023 City Council Goals as presented. 

2. Motion to adopt the 2019-2023 City Council Goals with the following modifications… 



 
 
 

 1 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO :   KEITH CAMPBELL, CITY MANAGER 
  ALISSA ANGELO, DEPUTY CITY RECORDER 
 
FROM:  SARA SINGER WILSON, SSW CONSULTING 
 
DATE:  MARCH 25, 2019 
 
RE:   CITY OF STAYTON | 2019 CITY COUNCIL GOALS – SUMMARY REPORT 
 
 
On February 2, 2019, the Stayton City Council and Management Team gathered for a retreat to discuss 
and identify their goals for the next few years, and improve working relationships to enhance the livability 
of the Stayton community. Sara Singer Wilson of SSW Consulting (SSW) facilitated the session and led 
the group through team building activities and discussions around goals and actions for the future. On 
February 26, 2019, SSW met with the City’s management team to review the results of the retreat and 
refine language for the draft Council Goals Report. On March 18, 2019, the draft report was presented to 
the City Council where questions were raised regarding the refinement of the language for the goals and 
actions. The purpose of this memorandum is to provide additional information on the process of refining 
the goals and actions. 
 
The Council identified many ideas during the February 2nd session which spanned large overarching 
goals, as well as more specific actions related to larger goals or vision statements. The group had a limited 
timeframe for discussion and summarizing the final language, and SSW explained that the goals would 
be refined and presented in a draft summary document to the Council for review and further comment. 
The language gathered during the retreat was reviewed with City staff during a follow-up meeting and 
drafted into overarching goals for the community with specific actions listed to advance each goal. The 
actions are presented with suggested timelines for short-term actions (1-2 years), mid-term actions (2-3 
years), and long-term actions (4-5 years). SSW utilizes a similar process in all strategic planning efforts. 
During retreat sessions which can span one day or multiple days, there are opportunities to map ideas 
and build consensus around overarching goals or vision statements.  These exercises can yield many ideas 
which are vetted by staff and the consultant to develop a draft list of goals and actions that meet the 
objectives set by the group for specific, achievable goals with timelines to ensure accountability. It is 
always recommended that cities revisit their goals annually or bi-annually to review progress and make 
updates to the goals and actions.   
 
During the February 26th meeting with the Stayton Management Team, the results of the idea mapping 
exercise from the retreat session were reviewed and discussed. There were several goal areas that 
emerged at the February 2nd retreat including: Improved City Processes, Economic Development, Capital 
Improvement Plan, Water, Housing, Communications and Outreach, Community Livability, City Hall, 
and Emergency Preparedness. As staff discussed the various actions that would advance each of these 
overarching goals, they included language cited during the retreat session and included other existing 
projects or work already underway or on the horizon. As these actions were categorized under the goal 



 
 
 

 2 

areas for the short-term, mid-term, and long-term, the items listed under the topic area, “Improved City 
Processes” were consolidated under an overarching goal of “Improving Communication and Outreach” 
because there were many duplicate or similar actions listed under each goal area. By consolidating these 
goal areas, the intent is to improve communication and outreach in the organization, with the 
Council/Boards/Community Groups, and across the broader community. Communication is directly 
related to some of the process challenges the City has encountered in the past due to a lack of 
communication or consistency in process. During the discussion with staff, it was agreed to address 
Council’s comments regarding City processes by improving the City’s efforts in communicating its 
existing processes and making process refinements where needed. There were several ideas related to 
improving processes for City Council, and these ideas were addressed in the action, “Comple an update 
of Council rules.”  
 
SSW and City staff welcome any suggestions for improving or clarifying language in the draft goals and 
actions to ensure the document reflects the desires of the Council and meets the objective of identifying 
specific, achievable goals and actions with timelines to ensure accountability.  
 
 
 
 
 



1

STAYTON
CITY COUNCIL + 

MANAGEMENT TEAM 
RETREAT SUMMARY REPORT

MARCH 14, 2019
PREPARED BY: 



2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

03  STAYTON TEAM

04   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

06  ENVIRONMENTAL SCAN

08  2019 COUNCIL GOALS

11  TOTAL STRENGTH DEPLOYMENT INVENTORY (SDI)

14  GRAPHIC SUMMARY



3

STAYTON TEAM

CITY COUNCIL
Mayor Henry Porter

Councilor Paige Hook
Councilor Christopher Molin

Councilor Jordan Orht
Councilor David Patty

Councilor Brian Quigley

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Keith Campbell, City Manager
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder

Rich Sebens, Police Chief
Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director

Janna Moser, Library Director
Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director

CONSULTANT/FACILITATOR

Sara Singer Wilson, Principal/Owner, SSW Consulting



4

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
We are pleased to present th is  summary of our City Counci l and Management 
Team Goal Sett ing Session. 

This year ,  the Stayton City Counci l and Management Team met on Saturday, 
February 2 ,  2019 to ident i fy our goals for the next few years ,  and spend t ime 
gett ing to know each other and discover ing how to improve our abi l i ty to work 
together to improve the l ivabi l i ty of Stayton for everyone who l ives,  works,  and 
vis i ts  here.  The City hired a professional faci l i tator ,  Sara Singer Wilson of SSW 
Consult ing to prepare and guide the group through this discussion.  In advance 
of the retreat ,  Sara conducted indiv idual interviews with the Mayor ,  City Counci l , 
and Management Team to discuss indiv idual goals and expected outcomes for 
the retreat . 

She led the group through a team bui lding exercise using the Total Strength 
Deployment Inventory (SDI) .  TotalSDI is  a personal i ty assessment tool which helps 
people understand how their mot ives dr ive their behaviors ,  how those motives 
and behaviors change dur ing different s i tuat ions,  and how to develop a better 
understanding of the motive-dr iven behaviors of others .  The assessment results 
combined with the retreat act iv i t ies helped the team to bui ld an understanding 
of each other ’s  values and motivat ions,  and how those can inf luence team 
dynamics,  decis ion-making,  and more.  The team also explored confl ict  styles, 
to bui ld understanding and appreciat ion for the process each team member 
exper iences when facing confl ict .  This shared understanding can lead to improved 
working relat ionships and better decis ion-making outcomes as teams learn how 
to improve communicat ions and avoid unhealthy confl ict . 

The team’s engagement and part ic ipat ion were much appreciated,  and we look 
forward to working together with the community and our partners as we set out 
to achieve these goals . 

-City of Stayton City Counci l +  Management Team



5

RETREAT PURPOSE

The purpose of this retreat is to develop goals and objectives for the City of Stayton for the next 
five years. We will work to establish trust and understanding between the Council and members 
of the City’s Management Team, develop a culture of teamwork, and identify an agreement for 
how to work together to accomplish the City’s goals. 

RETREAT OUTCOMES

 » Identify goals and objectives for the City of Stayton for the next five years. 
 » Improve trust, communication, and collaboration between the City Council and the   

 Management Team. 
 » Develop awareness and appreciation of individual motivational value systems and   

 understand the dynamics of conflict to improve team communication and effectiveness. 



6

ENVIRONMENTAL SCAN
The environmental scan is a process of gathering information about events and their relationships 
within an organization’s internal and external environments. This exercise is helpful in providing 
context for organizations as they consider their future direction. The Council and Management 
Team reviewed the accomplishments from 2018 and identified current environmental factors 
such as community and regional trends, key drivers of change and compelling City issues. Key 
drivers of change are large scale forces which produce change throughout an organization 
and in various levels of the community. Typically, these change drivers consist of community 
or regional demographic, economic, technological, and other factors that create a changing 
environment to which organizations must adapt.

2018 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

 » City staff here for a hopeful future
 » New Councilors elected to office
 » Received multiple awards – Government Finance Officers Association budget award,   

 clean audit results, water
 » Advanced park development at Middle School – Park and Storm water detention
 » Grant for housing rehabilitation
 » Neighborhood grants
 » Continued staff training and professional development
 » Began updating infrastructure master plans
 » Implemented new technology (improvements at library and on City’s website)
 » Continued street improvements
 » Focused on outreach with community
 » Continued advancement of downtown revitalization
 » Collaborated with other agencies to benefit City



7

COMMUNITY +  REGIONAL TRENDS

 » Real water related issues
 » Food trucks and coffee trucks
 » Livable wage jobs
 » Marijuana legalization impact on youth
 » Affordable housing
 » Opioid crisis
 » Amazon coming to Salem with 1,000+ jobs
 » Infrastructure funding
 » Economic development interest

DRIVERS OF CHANGE

 » Need for multi-lingual and inclusive communications
 » Growth rate of Salem and Portland
 » Loss of local media – ‘The Statesmen’ – increase our budget for outreach
 » Public perception
 » Housing demand and prices
 » Investment in infrastructure
 » Process and protocol development
 » Inclusive engagement
 » Outside demands without community consideration – non-residents (developers,   

 businesses, etc.)

CITY ISSUES

 » Managing mis-information through social media
 » Stabilization of older neighborhoods
 » Need for ADA accessibility
 » Fostering community spirit and pride (through engagement and beautification efforts)
 » Residents have financial insecurity – low median incomes, high housing costs, livable   

 wages
 » Industrial Way – need for storm water and road improvements
 » Public transportation – need more amenities for everyone
 » City agreements that are inconsistent with City code need to be addressed
 » Stayton needs a re-brand
 » Perception of being not business-friendly
 » Operate like a professional City (ex./ addressing the vocal minority and expectations,   

 operate on a level playing field for all residents/customers, consistent processes and   
 protocols)

 » New commercial district
 » Access to information for ALL – engagement beyond Facebook
 » Need for long-term asset management



8

2019 CITY COUNCIL GOALS
The Council and staff worked together to map ideas for goal statements. These goal statements 
will guide the work of the City organization, provide direction to the Council as they develop 
their budget and future policies, and communicate to the community the priorities the City will 
be working towards for the next five years. The goals are intended to be five-year goals to allow 
the team to plan for the long-term, with the understanding that goals will be evaluated semi-
annually and updated as needed to reflect current community needs and priorities. 

In reviewing the Council’s ideas on goals, City staff developed action steps for the short-term, 
mid-term and long-term to advance each goal. The City will also use these goals to guide them 
in developing partnerships with regional and community partners to seek support, funding, or 
other resources to advance these priorities and improve the Stayton community. 

2019 -2023 CITY COUNCIL GOALS

.
GOAL: IMPROVE COMMUNICATION AND OUTREACH. 

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Develop a summary of 
communications/branding 
strategy

Develop tools and strategies 
to reach the broader 
community

Continuously evaluate 
communication and 
outreach tools and maintain 
flexibility

Identify future opportunities 
to reach target audiences to 
improve perception

Complete update of Council 
rules

GOAL: SUPPORT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. 

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Establish guidelines and 
expectations with RDS

Implement economic 
development strategies 
identified in the new ED 
strategic plan

Develop economic 
development strategies 
through the economic 
development strategic 
plan development for 
marketing, urban renewal, and 
infrastructure improvements

Update the downtown plan



9

GOAL: PROVIDE DIVERSE HOUSING OPTIONS FOR THE COMMUNITY. 

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Analyze current land use code
Update the housing needs 
analysis

Discuss the City’s role in 
housing policy and provide 
Council direction on the 
desired outcomes

Prepare an inventory of City-
owned land

Engage the housing 
commission

Benchmarking

GOAL: IMPROVE AND EXPAND CITY FACILITIES.

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Conduct a facility needs 
assessment

Assess sites for a future city 
hall

Assess funding options

GOAL: PLAN FOR A SAFE COMMUNITY. 

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Update emergency operations 
plan

Fund emergency management

GOAL: DEVELOP A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Develop an inventory of all 
infrastructure projects to 
inform the capital budget. 
Include parks, facilities, storm 
water, water, sewer, streets. 
Include all infrastructure in 
addition to the infrastructure 
identified through the City’s 
master plans

Implement asset 
management software

Develop performance 
indicators for infrastructure 
to facilitate ongoing 
maintenance schedules

Evaluate asset management 
tools

Complete updates of the 
sewer, water, storm water, 
and parks master plans

Complete a utility rate 
analysis to examine 
resources to fund future 
infrastructure investments

Develop a CIP that creates a 
process for prioritizing and 
funding capital projects



10

GOAL: EXPAND THE CITY’S WATER SUPPLY.

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Search for a secondary water 
source.

If possible, establish a water 
source.

Maintain all water sources.

GOAL: ENHANCE COMMUNITY LIVABILITY.

Short-term (1-2 years) Mid-term (3-4 years) Long-term (5 years)

Expand community and 
neighborhood grant programs

Update parks and recreation 
master plan

Establish priorities around 
code enforcement – look at 
task force

Update code enforcement 
policies

Address infrastructure needs 
at pool and community center



11

TOTAL STRENGTH DEPLOYMENT 
INVENTORY (SDI)

One of the primary goals of the retreat was to develop trust and understanding between the 
Council and the Management Team. The Total Strength Deployment Inventory (SDI) was used 
to understand individual motives and how these motives impact team behavior when things are 
going well and during conflict. 

TotalSDI is a personality assessment tool which helps people understand how their motives drive 
their behaviors, how those motives and behaviors change during different situations, and how 
to develop a better understanding of the motive-driven behaviors of others. This assessment is 
designed to help people understand themselves and others – not just how we behave, but why 
we behave in certain ways – and that understanding can lead to meaningful, practical changes 
in leaders and teams that minimize conflict and maximize effectiveness. Each team member 
completed the Strength Deployment Inventory which focuses on understanding motives under 
two conditions, when things are going well and when you are in conflict.

When things are going well, three primary motivations work together as a system - the Motivational 
Value System (MVS). When people experience conflict, three primary motivations work in 
sequence - the Conflict Sequence. While these motives are given the same color names, they 
are expressed differently under the two conditions. 

COLOR OF 
MOTIVATION

WHEN THINGS ARE 
GOING WELL

IN CONFLICT

Blue (nurturant) Concern for people: Actively 
seeking to help others

Want to accommodate: Efforts 
to preserve or restore harmony

Red (directive) Concern for performance: Ac-
tively seeking opportunities to 
achieve results

Want to assert: Efforts to prevail 
over another person or obstacle

Green (autonomizing) Concern for process: Actively 
seeking logical orderliness and 
self-reliance

Want to analyze: Efforts to 
conserve resources and assure 
independence

 



12

WHAT DRIVES OUR TEAM?

A key function of the SDI is to identify your Motivational Value System or MVS. It shows how you 
assess your concerns for People, Performance, and Process on scales of 1 to 100 when things 
are going well. While everyone has all three motives, the frequency of these motives is not the 
same for each person. The key to understanding why people do what they do is recognizing 
these differences in motivations. Your Motivational Value System is the system of motives that 
serve as your basis for choosing strengths, filtering information, and judging yourself and others. 
In SDI, there are seven different MVS types: 

 » Blue: the altruistic-nurturing MVS
 » Red: the assertive-directing MVS
 » Green: the analytic-autonomizing MVS
 » Red-Blue: the assertive-nurturing MVS
 » Red-Green: the judicious-competing MVS
 » Blue-Green: the cautious-supporting MVS
 » Hub: the flexible-cohering MVS

The graphic below shows the team’s MVS dots charted on the SDI triangle. 

Stayton MVS Composite
SDI - Group Report

City of Stayton : Stayton 2018
Council + Management Team Retreat

Facilitated By Sara Wilson Feb 2, 2019

SDI RESULTS LEGEND
Self Edition

L

K

J
I

H

G
F

E

D

C

B

A

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
I
J
K
L

NAME MVS
Alissa Angelo Blue-Green
Keith Campbell Green
Dan Fleishman Blue
Paige Hook HUB
Lance Ludwick HUB
Christopher Molin Red
Jana Moser Blue
Jordan Ohrt Blue
David Patty HUB
Henry Porter Blue-Green
Brian Quigley Green
Rich Sebens HUB

This Report provided by
SSW Consulting, LLC

sara@sarasingerwilson.com
© Copyright 2019 by PSP, Inc. All rights reserved. The SDI® Triangle is patent pending. TotalSDI.com



13

THE CONFLICT SEQUENCE

With SDI, people develop an increasing awareness around what they do in conflict, how they can
recognize the things that cause conflict for them and how they can effectively manage conflict.. 
Feelings of conflict are a sign that something important to you is not right. Your Conflict Sequence 
(CS)  is part of a natural response to a real or perceived threat to your Motivational Value System. 
To operate at your best during conflict, you need to understand the dynamics of it. Your Conflict 
Sequence describes a series of changes in motivation during conflict. It shows the order in which 
you are motivated to Accommodate, Assert, and Analyze on scales of 1 to 100 when experiencing 
conflict. There are three stages of conflict as described below:

STAGE 1: focus on self, problem, and others
STAGE 2: focus on self and problem
STAGE 3: focus on self

In SDI, there are over 5,000 unique points on the SDI triangle, the triangle is divided into 13 regions 
to show 13 different Conflict Sequences. 

The graphic below shows the team’s CS arrowheads charted on the SDI triangle.

Stayton Team Report
SDI - Group Report

City of Stayton : Stayton 2018
Council + Management Team Retreat

Facilitated By Sara Wilson Feb 2, 2019

SDI RESULTS LEGEND
Self Edition

L

K

J
I

H

G
F

E

D

C

B

A

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
I
J
K
L

NAME MVS CS
Alissa Angelo Blue-Green G-[BR]
Keith Campbell Green G-[BR]
Dan Fleishman Blue [BG]-R
Paige Hook HUB G-R-B
Lance Ludwick HUB [RG]-B
Christopher Molin Red G-R-B
Jana Moser Blue B-G-R
Jordan Ohrt Blue G-[BR]
David Patty HUB [BRG]
Henry Porter Blue-Green [BG]-R
Brian Quigley Green G-R-B
Rich Sebens HUB G-B-R

This Report provided by
SSW Consulting, LLC

sara@sarasingerwilson.com
© Copyright 2019 by PSP, Inc. All rights reserved. The SDI® Triangle is patent pending. TotalSDI.com



14

GRAPHIC SUMMARY











 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: April 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance 1029 Amending Land Use Code establishing 
standards for Recreational Vehicle Parks and 
Campgrounds 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the second consideration of Ordinance 1029 which would 
enact legislative amendments to the Land Use and Development Code to establish 
development standards for recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds. The City Council held a 
hearing on the proposed changes at its March 18 meeting, requested some changes to the 
amendments, and approved the first consideration of the ordinance. 

CHANGES TO AMENDMENT 

In its first consideration of Ordinance 1029, the City Council requested two changes to the 
proposed standards.  These changes have been incorporated into the revised draft ordinance 
presented for the second consideration.  These changes: 

1. Require parking spaces to be provided adjacent to community buildings.  This change 
can be found at the top of page 5 of the revised draft ordinance.  

2. Require park management to keep records of guest registration and make the records 
available for inspect by City staff.  This change can be found in paragraph 5.a in the 
middle of page 6 of the revised draft. 

OPINION OF CITY ATTORNEY 

There was testimony presented at the Council’s public hearing the questioned the City’s ability 
to regulate the length of stay in RV parks.  Staff has consulted with the City Attorney on this 
issue.   The City Attorney’s reply, in part, was “the City may impose a limit on the length of 
occupancy of a recreational vehicle located in a recreational vehicle park.”  The City Attorney 
noted that ORS 901.110(6), Oregon’s Landlord Tenant Act, exempts vacation occupancy from 
the statute. 



 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

As noted in the City Attorney’s review, the 180-day limit on stays, may be excessive, if the 
Council wants to assure that RV parks are not used for residential purposes.  Staff’s original 
recommendation to the Planning Commission was to limit stays to 120 days.  The Council 
should consider an amendment to shorten the allowable length of a stay to between 90 and 
120 days. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the second consideration of Ordinance 1029 

Move to approve revised Ordinance No 1029 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the second consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 1029 is enacted and will be 
presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with further modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 1029 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the 
Mayor for final enactment. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the second consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 1029 will be amended as 
directed and presented to the Mayor for his signature.  

 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 1 of 7 

ORDINANCE NO. 1029 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 
17, ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 

PARKS AND CAMPGROUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and implement a 
comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning goals established by 
the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) as the 
Land Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC Title 17, Chapter 20 of the Land Use and Development Code, includes 
Development and Improvements Standards for a number of land uses but does not include 
development standards for Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds; 

WHEREAS, Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds are a permitted use in the Interchange 
Development Zone and the Industrial Agriculture Zone; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land Use 
and Development Code, in accordance with Section 17.12.175.3, and following a public hearing has 
recommended that the Stayton City Council enact the recommended amendments;  

WHEREAS, notice of the proposed amendment was sent to the Department of Land Conservation and 
Development more than 35 days in advance of the Planning Commission’s public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the amendments 
proposed by the Planning Commission are appropriate and are consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  Recreational Personal Property Defined.  Section 17.04.100 is hereby amended to add a 
new definition:  

RECREATIONAL PERSONAL PROPERTY:  Boats, boat trailers, snowmobiles, personal 
water craft, all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), and trailers designed primarily to carry ATVs or 
snowmobiles. 

Section 2.  Definition of Recreational Vehicle Amended.  Section 17.04.100 is hereby amended to 
amend the definition of Recreational Vehicle: 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE: A vacation trailer or other vehicular or portable unit which is 
either self-propelled, towed, or carried by a motor vehicle and which is intended for temporary 
human occupancy and is designed for vacation or recreational purposes but not a permanent 
residence.  Recreational vehicles include travel trailers, motor homes, and campers, boats, boat 
trailers, snowmobiles, personal water craft, all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), and trailers designed 
primarily to carry ATVs or snowmobiles.  Recreational vehicles do not include utility trailers 
or canopies. 

Section 3.  Residential Parking Restrictions Modified.  Section 17.20.060.3 is hereby amended to 
include recreational personal property in the parking restrictions for residential lots, as follows: 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 2 of 7 

3. RESIDENTIAL AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKING AND STORAGE OF 
RECREATIONAL PERSONAL PROPERTY RESTRICTIONS. 

a. Motor Vehicles other than Recreational Vehicles.  No parking shall be allowed except on 
driveways.  The side yard and rear yard areas may be used for parking of vehicles unless 
otherwise prohibited by this title. 

b. Recreational Vehicles.  The following standards apply to the off-street parking and storage 
of recreational vehicles and the storage and parking of recreational personal property within 
any residential zone: 

1) No off-street parking or storage of recreational vehicles or recreational personal 
property shall be allowed within the front yard except on driveways.  Recreational 
vehicles and recreational personal property may be parked or stored either in a 
driveway, side yard, or rear yard.  On corner lots, recreational vehicles and recreational 
personal property may be parked or stored in the front yard from which vehicular access 
is not gained. 

2) A maximum of a combination of 3 recreational vehicles and items of recreational 
personal property may be parked or stored outside a fully enclosed structure on a single 
lot. 

3) Recreational vehicles and trailers shall be required to display a current and valid state 
registration if parked or stored outside a fully enclosed structure. 

4) Recreational vehicles or recreational personal property shall not be parked or stored on 
any portion of a lot when parking of the vehicle or property inhibits the necessary view 
of street traffic. 

5) No portion of a parked recreational vehicle or recreational personal property may block 
any portion of a sidewalk. 

6) Permanent Long-term occupancy of recreational vehicles is prohibited.  Temporary 
occupancy must comply with Section 17.20.110. 

7) On-street parking of recreational vehicles and boats is prohibited except in compliance 
with City traffic code requirements. 

8) The City Planner may grant a permit for outside storage of a single recreational vehicle 
or item of recreational personal property in a portion of the front yard when the 
following circumstances exist: 

a) The storage area is on a concrete pad. 

b) The recreational vehicle storage area is screened from the street and/or sidewalk by 
a sight-obscuring hedge or fence.  The screening, hedge, or fence must comply with 
Section 17.20. 050. 

c) The recreational vehicle storage area does not create any safety hazards to street 
traffic. 

d) The recreational vehicle storage area, recreational vehicle screening or fencing is 
continuously maintained. 

Section 4.  Recreational Vehicle Park and Campground Standards Established.  Chapter 17.20 is 
hereby amended to enact Section 17.20.250 establishing design and operational standards for 
Recreational Vehicle Parks and Campgrounds, as follows: 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 3 of 7 

17.20.250 RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKS AND CAMPGROUNDS 

1. PURPOSE. The purposes of this Section shall be  

 a. to provide rules, regulations, requirements and standards for development of recreational 
vehicle parks and campgrounds in the City ensuring that the public health, safety and general 
welfare are protected;  

 b. to promote orderly growth and development together with the conservation, protection and 
proper use of land.  

 c. to minimize the impacts of recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds on neighboring 
properties;  

 d. to assure the comfort and protection of the occupants of recreational vehicle parks and 
campgrounds; and 

 e. to make proper provision for all public facilities in recreational vehicle parks and 
campgrounds,. 

2. METHOD OF ADOPTION. Recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds are subject to site 
plan review and shall be approved pursuant to the requirements of Sections 17.12.070 through 
17.12.100. 

3. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS. All applications submitted for approval of a recreational 
vehicle park or campground development shall consist of a preliminary development plan to a 
scale of 1 inch equals not more than 50 feet.  The application shall contain, but not be limited 
to, the following information in addition to the requirements of Section 17.12.220. 

a. Name(s) of person owning and/or controlling the land proposed for the park. 

b. Name of the recreational vehicle park or campground and address. 

c. Boundaries and dimensions of the recreational vehicle park or campground. 

d. Facility map showing relationship of the recreational vehicle park or campground to 
adjacent properties and surrounding zoning. 

e. Location and dimensions of each site with each site designated by number. 

f. Location and dimensions of each existing or proposed building. 

g. Location and width of park streets and pedestrian ways. 

h. Location of recreational areas and buildings and common area. 

i. Location of available fire hydrants. 

j. Enlarged plot plan of a typical site showing location of the pad for a recreational vehicle or 
tent, fire ring, picnic table, parking, utility connections, and landscaping. 

k. Access features shall conform to the requirements set forth in Section 17.26.020.  Section 
17.26.020 also specifies submittal requirements for requesting an access permit and 
approval. 

l. A survey plat of the property. 

m. Building elevation drawings of all new structures. 

n. A water system plan meeting Public Works Design Standards. 

o. A sewerage system plan prepared in accordance with Public Works Design Standards. 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 4 of 7 

p. A preliminary storm water report and drainage system plan showing all drainage system 
improvements on site including storm water runoff calculations in accordance with Public 
Works Design Standards. 

q. Location of and method of garbage collection and disposal. 

r. Park rules and regulations. 

4. DESIGN STANDARDS. The following standards and requirements shall govern the design of 
a recreational vehicle park or campground.  The design shall also meet other applicable 
standards and requirements of this Chapter and the approval criteria of Section 17.12.220.  
Where there is a difference between the standards of this Section and any other provision of 
this Code, the more stringent standard shall apply. 

a. A recreational vehicle park or campground shall not be less than 3 acres in area. 

b. Individual spaces shall contain a minimum of 1,500 square feet with a width of no less than 
30 feet for any space designed to accommodate a recreational vehicle and a minimum of 
1,000 square feet with a width of no less than 20 feet for any space designed to 
accommodate a tent only. 

c. Only one recreational vehicle shall be permitted on a space. 

d. No building, structure, or land within the boundaries of a recreational vehicle park or 
campground shall be used for any purpose except for the uses permitted as follows: 

1) Recreational vehicles, together with the normal accessory uses such as cabana, patio 
slab, ramada, and storage and washroom buildings. 

2) Private and public utilities and services as permitted by City approval. 

3) Community recreation facilities, including swimming pool, for the residents of the park 
and guests only. 

4) One residence for the use of a manager or a caretaker responsible for maintaining or 
operating the property. 

e. All recreational vehicle or camping spaces shall be located at least 30 feet from the property 
boundary line abutting upon a public street, and at least 15 feet from other property lines, 
except that when a sound-deadening fireproof barrier, as an earthen berm or masonry wall 
is provided, the Planning Commission may allow the 15-foot setback to be reduced to 5 
feet, but shall not reduce the 30-foot setback. 

f. Recreational vehicles shall not be located closer than 25 feet from any other recreational 
vehicle or permanent building within the recreational vehicle park. 

g. Each site shall be provided with an asphalt or concrete pad for the placement of a 
recreational vehicle a minimum of 12 feet wide. 

h. The recreational vehicle park or campground entrance shall be designed to provide a clearly 
defined main entry and exit point to the park.  Secondary entry points may be required to 
provide ingress and egress for emergency vehicles.  The main entry shall include street 
lighting and a sign(s) identifying the name of the facility and providing direction to the 
manager's office or residence.  Controlled ingress and egress may be installed subject to 
decision authority approval of design. 

i. Two off street parking spaces shall be provided at each recreational vehicle space.  Also, 
additional parking space shall be provided in parking areas distributed around the park (not 
part of the common area) not to be less than 1 parking space per 10 spaces for parks of 100 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 5 of 7 

spaces or less, and 1 parking space per 20 spaces for each space over 100.  Parking spaces 
shall be provided adjacent to bathhouses and other community buildings. 

j. Each space shall be provided with a picnic table with benches and a fire ring or barbeque 
apparatus approved by the Fire Marshall. 

k. Adequate street lighting shall be provided within the park in accordance with a plan 
approved by the decision authority. 

l. All utilities shall be installed underground unless otherwise approved by the decision 
authority. 

m. Approved fire hydrants shall be installed so that all recreational vehicles, and other 
structures are within 250 feet of an approved fire hydrant as measured along the center line 
of a street. 

n. Buffering or screening shall be installed along park boundaries in accordance with a 
landscaping plan approved by the Planning Commission.  All buffering or screening shall 
be in the form of a sight-obscuring fence, wall, evergreen or other suitable planting, at least 
6 feet high.  A chain link fence with slats may not be used as a sight-obscuring fence. 

o. A pet waste disposal bag dispensing station shall be provided for each 25 sites. 

p. Landscaping shall be installed in accordance with a landscaping plan approved by the 
decision authority. 

q. Trash receptacles for the disposal of solid waste materials shall be provided in convenient 
locations for the use of occupants of the park, screened from open view and located within 
200 feet of each recreational vehicle space.  Refuse containers shall have tight-fitting lids, 
covers or closable tops, and shall be durable, rust-resistant, water-tight, rodent-proof and 
washable and shall be enclosed by sight obscuring fence or screening and situated on a 
concrete pad.  There shall be a minimum of four cubic feet of solid waste receptacle per 
space.  Refuse shall be collected and disposed of on a regular basis in accordance with City 
garbage franchise regulations. 

r. If storage yards for vehicles, boats, or trailers are provided, the storage yard shall be 
provided at the rate of up to 100 square feet per recreational vehicle space depending on the 
clientele served.  An 8-foot high sight obscuring fence with a lockable gate shall be erected 
around the perimeter of the storage yard.  If no storage yard for is provided, storage shall 
not be permitted within the park boundaries. 

s. If pedestrian walkways are provided separate from the vehicular ways within the park, they 
shall be at least 5 feet wide and be composed of concrete or bituminous concrete at least 3 
inches thick. 

t. All vehicular ways and parking areas within the park or campground shall be designed to 
provide safe and convenient access to all spaces and to facilities for common use by 
occupants, shall be graded to drain and surfaced with asphalt or concrete to maintain proper 
drainage and shall be continuously maintained by the owner. 

u. Minimum park street improvement width for shall be 14 feet for a one-way local street and 
24 feet for a two-way street. 

v. Each recreational vehicle space shall be provided with municipal water and municipal 
sanitary sewage service. All recreational vehicles staying in the park shall be connected to 
the water and sewage service.  Up to ten percent of the total spaces may be without water 
and/or sewer if proposed and approved as such at time of application approval. 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 6 of 7 

w. Each space in a park shall be within 500 feet of a building that contains toilets and showers. 

x. Each recreational vehicle space shall be provided with electrical service.  Up to ten percent 
of the total spaces may be without electrical service if proposed and approved as such at 
time of application approval. 

y. The park or campground shall provide one utility building or room containing a minimum 
of one clothes washing machine, one clothes drying machine for each thirty (30) spaces and 
shall include space for clothes sorting and folding.  

z. Each site shall be marked for identification for safety and security reasons.  Markers must 
be easily readable from the driveways in day or night conditions. 

5. OPERATIONAL STANDARDS. 

a. Occupancy of space shall be limited to 180 consecutive days.  Guests must check out for a 
minimum of 7 days between stays.  Park management shall keep records of guest 
registration and shall make those records available for inspection by City staff on a 
quarterly basis. 

b. Electrical Connections.  All electrical connections shall comply with the State of Oregon 
electrical code and be duly inspected. 

c. Water Connections.  All connections of water to a site and to an occupied recreational 
vehicle shall comply with the State of Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, and the City of 
Stayton Public Works Design Standards. 

d. Sewer Connections.  All sewer connections shall comply with the State of Oregon 
Plumbing Specialty Code and the City of Stayton Public Works Design Standards. 

e. Fire Extinguishers.  Portable fire extinguishers approved by the Fire Marshall shall be kept 
in service buildings and at other locations conveniently and readily accessible for use by all 
occupants and be maintained in good operating conditions. 

f. Fire Hazards.  The owner of the park shall be responsible for maintaining the park or 
campground free of any brush, leaves, and weeds which might facilitate the spread of fires 
between sites and buildings in the park. 

g. Inspections. The Building Official may check the park a minimum of once a year and 
submit to the park or campground owner and manager a written report stating whether or 
not the park is in compliance with these standards.  If not in compliance, the owner must 
make repairs as are required or will be considered to be in violation of this Code and 
subject to enforcement action. 

h. Refuse Burning. Burning of refuse shall not be permitted. 

i. Park Administration.  It shall be the responsibility of the owner(s) to see that the provisions 
of this Section are observed and maintained within their facility, and for failure to do so 
shall be subject to the penalties provided for violation of this Title.  There shall be an on-
site resident manager. 

j. Park owners shall initiate procedures to assume title or ownership of any derelict, 
abandoned and inoperable recreational vehicles and personal property no more than 30 days 
after their abandonment. 

Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall not become effective until the 30th day after adoption 
by the Stayton City Council and execution by the Mayor, or a representative of the Mayor.  In the 
event of a timely appeal to LUBA, this Ordinance shall not become effective until the LUBA appeal is 



 

Ordinance No. 1029 Recreational Vehicle Park Standards Page 7 of 7 

finally resolved, including any appeals from the decision of LUBA. 

Section 6.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of Land 
Conservation and Development, as required by OAR 660-018-0040. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this first day of April, 2019.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2019 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2019 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

 



 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: April 1, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Report of Ordinance 1019 Review Committee and 
Recommended Code Amendments 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is receipt of the report from the Ordinance 1019 Review 
Committee. 

BACKGROUND 

In March 2018, Revitalize Downtown Stayton presented to the City Council a set of Code 
amendments to address the conditions of property, primarily in the downtown area.  The 
Council indicated its willingness to consider the amendments and requested that staff convert 
the proposal in the proper format of an ordinance.  Ordinance 1019 was presented to the City 
Council at their April 16 2018 meeting and, after some amendments, was enacted in early June. 

The Ordinance amended two chapters of existing code and enacted a new chapter in Title 15 of 
the Municipal Code.   Section 1 of the Ordinance requires people to pick up their pet waste, 
except on their own property.  Section 2 of the Ordinance prohibits smoking or vaping outside 
the front street façade of any building in the downtown area.  Section 3 of the Ordinance 
establishes standards for the maintenance of non-residential properties in the downtown area.  
These standards require property to be kept free from debris, trash and other materials; that 
weeds be removed from the front of buildings, and that awnings be kept in good repair, moss 
free and be illuminated. 

Shortly after enactment of the Ordinance, the City Council received comments about the 
smoking requirements.  The Council suspended enforcement of the Ordinance in September.  
Upon receiving additional comments at their meetings, the City Council held a hearing on 
November 5 regarding the provisions of the Ordinance. Following that hearing, the Council 
voted to establish a committee to review the Ordinance and charged the Committee with 
recommending to the Council modifications and suggestions for the Ordinance. 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COMMITTEE 

The Committee was made up of representation of downtown property owners, downtown 
business owners, business employees, Revitalize Downtown Stayton and two alternate 



 
 

members.  The Committee was chaired by Council Quiqley, met on three occasions and was 
assisted in its deliberations by the Planning and Development Director and the Police Chief.  
The Committee reviewed all portions of Ordinance 1019 and has made a number of 
recommendations Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 1029 as revised.  Enclosed in the 
packet is a memorandum from the Committee to the City Council which outlines the 
Committee’s recommendations.  Also enclosed are the recommended changes to the Municipal 
Code from the Committee. 

RECOMMENDATION FROM STAFF 

Staff has two concerns with the recommendations from the Committee.  The Committee has 
recommended that the City dedicate space within the municipal parking lot behind N Third Ave 
for a dedicated smoking area.  Staff has numerous concerns with this proposal.  The smoking 
area would result in the loss of parking spaces.  With the changes to on-street parking that will 
be coming this summer, staff is concerned that there will be increased demand for off-street 
parking in the downtown area.  Secondly, the designated smoking area would primarily benefit 
one business and staff is concerned that public resources not be used in a way that would 
provide such a benefit to private concerns.  Finally, as a Healthy Eating Active Living 
Community, staff questions whether the City should be facilitating tobacco consumption. 

The Committee has recommended a number of amendments to the Municipal Code.  Several of 
these amendments would apply certain restrictions City-wide, instead of solely in the 
downtown area.  Considering that the controversy that was raised by the enactment of 
Ordinance 1019, without adequate public notice and consultation, staff would like to echo the 
remarks of the Committee that a vigorous effort be made to notify the public prior to 
consideration of these amendments.  At a minimum, the Council should hold a public hearing 
on any ordinance under consideration and public information meetings and mailings should be 
conducted prior to that. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Accept the recommendations of the Ordinance 1919 Review Committee 

Move to direct staff implement a public notice process regarding the proposed Code 
amendments and prepare an ordinance for presentation to the Council at first meeting in 
July.  Further, request staff to present to Council proposals to implement the 
recommendation for a smoking area in the municipal parking lot behind N Third Ave. 

2. Accept the recommendations of the Ordinance 1919 Review Committee for Code 
amendments 

Move to direct staff implement a public notice process regarding the proposed Code 
amendments and prepare an ordinance for presentation to the Council at first meeting in 
July.   

3. Maintain the Municipal Code unchanged 

Move to end the suspension of enforcement of Ordinance 1019. 

 



 

 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
 FROM: Ordinance 1019 Review Committee  
 
 DATE: March 14, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Recommendations from Committee 
  
 

The City Council appointed the Ordinance 1019 Review Committee on November 19, 
2018 for the purpose of reviewing the standards and requirements enacted into the 
Stayton Municipal Code by Ordinance 1019.  While the issue of the smoking restrictions 
is what prompted formation of the Committee, the Committee has reviewed the entire 
ordinance. 

The Committee met on three occasions and has a number of recommendations for 
consideration by the City Council.  The recommendations from the Committee include 
both changes in the Municipal Code and other recommendations. 

Code Amendments 

The non-residential property maintenance requirements established by Ordinance 1019 
applied only in the downtown area as defined by the ordinance.  The Committee 
recommends that they apply City-wide. 

Ordinance 1019 prohibits smoking outside the front street façade of a building in the 
downtown area.  Oregon statute prohibits smoking within 10 feet of the doorway or any 
window that can be opened at a non-residential property.  The Committee recommends 
amending the Code to prohibit smoking with 20 feet of the doorway of any business 
establishment in the City.  In addition, placement of ashtrays and cigarette butt 
containers would be prohibited within 20 feet of a doorway. 

Ordinance 1019 established standards for maintenance of awnings.  The Committee was 
concerned that the Code was too vague and has proposed alternative language for 
awning maintenance.  The Code requires awnings to have illumination to the sidewalk.  
The Committee recommends this provision be repealed and replaced with a 
requirement that all building facades or interiors be illuminated.  Finally, regarding 
awnings, the Committee recommends that if an awning is removed, the entire frame 
and any supports also be removed. 



 

 

The only maintenance provision that the Committee recommends apply only in the 
downtown area is the recommended requirement for building illumination.  The 
Committee recommends the City require the buildings along N Third Ave, between E 
Water St and E Burnett St be illuminated at night.  Several options would be allowed, 
including illumination of the interior of the building, provided it is visible from the 
exterior.  The amendments specify the light needs to be a minimum of 1,000 lumens 
(equivalent to a 12 watt LED bulb) and a have a temperature rating of 5000K or less (a 
warm white rather than a cool white). 

The Committee’s recommendations above are attached, prepared in the form of an 
amendment to the various chapters of municipal code. 

Other Recommendations 

The Committee unanimously agreed to recommend that the City establish a designated smoking 
area in the city-owned parking lot behind N Third Ave.  This parking lot is not heavily used and 
the dedication of one parking space as a smoking area would not impact the supply of parking 
compared to the demand for spaces. 

While the Committee was composed of individuals with a variety of interests in the downtown 
area, there was not necessarily representation of businesses or property owners from other 
portions of the City.  The recommendations from the Committee, should they be implemented 
by the City Council, would have an impact City-wide.  Therefore, the Committee strongly 
recommends that the City Council conduct an effective public information and outreach 
campaign, including a public hearing, prior to enactment of the recommendations. 



Proposed Amendments from the Ordinance 1019 Review Committee 
Draft for Committee Review March 8, 2018 

Deletions are crossed out; additions are underlined 

Part 1.  Amend Section 8.12.040.5 

5. Smoking of tobacco, marijuana, or any other substances including E-Cigarettes and 
use of smokeless tobacco is prohibited at any City-owned property, park and 
facilities.  Smoking or vaping is prohibited on the sidewalk of a public street outside 
the front street facadewithin twenty (20) feet of the doorway of any building in the 
area designated as Downtown in the Comprehensive Plan Map and properties on both 
sides of N First Ave between Water St and Washington Stbusiness establishment.  
Smoking is defined as inhaling, exhaling, breathing, or carrying any lighted cigar, 
cigarette, E-cigarette, vape pen, or other tobacco product in any manner or in any 
form.  No ashtrays or cigarette butt containers shall be placed on the sidewalk of a 
public street within twenty (20) feet of the doorway of any business establishment. 

 

Part 2.  Amend Chapter 15.12 

CHAPTER 15.12 

NON-RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 

15.12.010 PURPOSE 

This Chapter is intended to protect the Downtown CoreCity of Stayton from blight, 
deterioration, and decay as a result of properties in a condition or state that potentially 
would have an adverse effect on the value, utility, and habitability of property within the 
City.  Such properties may: 

1. Pose hazards to the public health, safety, and welfare. 

2. Cause potential damage to adjoining and nearby properties.  A property which is 
merely unkempt or vacant for long periods may reduce the value of adjoining and 
nearby property, and the habitability and economic well-being of the City may be 
materially and adversely affected. 

3. Be a cause and source of blight in both residential and non-residential 
neighborhoods, especially when the person in charge of the building fails to 
actively maintain and manage the building to ensure that it does not become a 
liability to the neighborhood. 

4. Discourage economic development and retard appreciation of property values. 

5. Serve as a potential fire hazards and can jeopardize the ability of owners of 
neighboring property from securing or maintaining affordable fire insurance. 

6. Potentially cause increased need for police protection due to misuse of the 
property by persons not having permission or right to use the property. 

7. Be the core and cause of spreading blight 

It is the responsibility of property ownership to prevent owned property from becoming a 
burden to the neighborhood and community and a threat to the public health, safety, or 



Proposed Amendments from the Ordinance 1019 Review Committee 
Draft for Committee Review March 8, 2018 

welfare. It is also in the community's best interest not to lose unique buildings, and in the 
best interest of the owner to maintain their investment. 

15.12.020 SCOPE OF REGULATIONS 

The regulations included in this Chapter shall be in effect and control the use of property 
used for business and mixed business/residential purposes and public places only within 
the Downtown Core of the City.  The Downtown Core is defined as that area designated 
Downtown on the Stayton Comprehensive Plan Map and both sides of N First Ave from 
Water St to Washington St. 

15.12.030 PROPERTY TO BE KEPT FREE FROM DEBRIS 

The exterior of any non-residential property shall be kept free of debris, trash, building 
materials, or the storage of other goods. The building exterior and/or property shall be 
kept free of any accumulation of newspapers, circulars or flyers, graffiti, discarded items 
including but not limited to cigarette butts, scrap paper, food or beverage containers, 
furniture, clothing, and appliances. 

15.12.040 WEEDS AND PLANTS TO BE CONTROLLED 

Plant material shall be cut down or destroyed between the building facade and the street 
unless planted in a container or tree well by the building owner, occupant, or city.  Plant 
material shall be removed between buildings, and in alleyways. Planted materials in 
landscape beds and planters shall be maintained to keep them healthy and attractiveweed 
free.  

15.12.050 ILLUMINATION AND MAINTENANCE OF AWNINGS 

1. Awnings shall be in good repair and free of moss or algaenot be torn, frayed, 
ripped, faded, or stained, soiled, or dirty. 

2. Awnings shall not be internally illuminated. However, lighting which provides 
illumination to the sidewalk and signage is required from dusk to midnight.If an 
awning cover is removed, the building owner shall remove the frame and any 
supports for the awning.   

15.12.055 ILLUMINATION OF BUILDINGS 

The purpose of this section is provide uniformity of lighting of building exterior and 
interior retail areas in the downtown area in order to provide an inviting atmosphere 
within the pedestrian oriented portion of the City. 

1. Buildings along N Third Avenue, between E Water St and E Burnett St shall 
provide illumination visible from the exterior of the building.  Illumination shall 
be provided by: 

a. Light fixtures on or in an awning or canopy overhanging the sidewalk; 

b. Light fixtures attached to the exterior of the building; 

c. Lights attached around the perimeter of a window frame; or 

d. Interior lighting within a window. 



Proposed Amendments from the Ordinance 1019 Review Committee 
Draft for Committee Review March 8, 2018 

2. Lighting shall be white light, a minimum of 1,000 lumens, with temperature 
rating of 5000K or less. 

3. Illumination shall be provided between dusk and 11:00 pm.  

15.12.060 ENFORCEMENT 

The Ordinance Enforcement Officer shall enforce the standards of this Chapter, with or 
without a complaint being filed, when apparent violations are visible from a public street 
or property with public access. 

1. Investigations. 

Once a violation has been identified, the Ordinance Enforcement Officer will 
issue a written determination of violation.  

2. Determination of Violation. 

a. When the Ordinance Enforcement Officer has determined that a violation of 
this Chapter exists, the Ordinance Enforcement Officer shall issue a written 
determination of violation to the property owner with an order to abate the 
violation.  The written determination shall be mailed by first class mail to 
the owner at the address of record in the Marion County Assessor’s records 
and shall include the following: 

1) Street address. 

2) A statement that the Ordinance Enforcement Officer has found the 
building or premises to be in violation of this Chapter. 

3) A thorough description of the violation. 

4) Statements advising the owner that if the required repairs or 
corrective actions are not completed within thirty days, the 
Ordinance Enforcement Officer will issue a Notice of Violation and 
Order of Abatement. 

5) Statements that issuance of a Notice of Violation and Order of 
Abatement may result in: 

a) Recording of the Notice and Order against the property. 

b) Issuance of a citation to the owner to appear in Stayton 
Municipal Court. 

c) Initiation of action to recover all City costs associated with 
the processing of the complaint, investigation and the 
resolution of the matter. 

6) The date by which the repairs or corrective actions must be 
completed and a reinspection scheduled. 

3. Notice of Violation and Order of Abatement. 

 If there is not compliance with the determination of violation and order by the 
date specified in the written determination, the Ordinance Enforcement Officer 
shall issue a Notice of Violation and Order of Abatement to the property owner.  



Proposed Amendments from the Ordinance 1019 Review Committee 
Draft for Committee Review March 8, 2018 

The Notice and Order shall be served upon the owner by certified mail, at the 
address of record in the Marion County Assessor’s records and shall include the 
following: 

a. Street address. 

b. A statement that the Ordinance Enforcement Officer has found the building 
or premises to be in violation of this Chapter. 

c. A thorough description of the violation. 

d. Statements advising the owner that if the required repairs or corrective 
actions are not completed within thirty days, plus three days for mailing 
from the date of the Notice and Order, the Ordinance Enforcement Officer 
shall: 

1) Record the Notice and Order against the property. 

2) Coordinate the issuance of a citation to the owner to appear in 
Stayton Municipal Court. 

3) Initiate action to recover all City costs associated with the processing 
of the complaint, investigation and the resolution of the matter. 

e. Statements that the owner may appeal the Notice and Order as specified in 
this Chapter. 

f. The date by which the repairs or corrective actions must be completed and a 
reinspection scheduled. 

4. Failure to Comply. 

 If there is not compliance with the Notice of Violation and Order by the specified 
date, the Ordinance Enforcement Officer shall: 

a. Coordinate the issuance of a citation to the owner to appear in Stayton 
Municipal Court; 

b. Record the Notice and Order against the property with all recording costs to 
be the responsibility of the owner; and 

c. Initiate an accounting for all costs associated with the processing of the 
complaint, investigation and the resolution of the matter with the intent and 
purpose of recovering these costs from the owner. A lien shall be placed on 
the subject property. 

5. Compliance. 

a. Upon compliance with the Order of Abatement, the Ordinance Enforcement 
Officer will issue a Notice of Compliance to the owner. 

b. If a Notice and Order was recorded against the property, the City Manager 
will record the Notice of Compliance against the property. 

c. If an accounting was initiated for all costs associated with the processing of 
the complaint, investigation and the resolution of the matter, the Finance 



Proposed Amendments from the Ordinance 1019 Review Committee 
Draft for Committee Review March 8, 2018 

Director will proceed with collecting these costs from the owner using 
adopted City procedures, including lien foreclosure. 

6. Penalties. Any person violating any of the provisions of this Chapter shall, upon 
court conviction thereof, be punished by a fine as specified by Council 
Resolution.  Each day that a violation remains unrectified after notification is a 
separate offense. 

15.12.070 APPEALS 

1. Appeal to City Administrator. 

 Any owner who has been issued a Notice of Violation by the Ordinance 
Enforcement Officer may file a written appeal to the City Manager within 10 
business days of the date the Notice of Violation was mailed. 

2. The City Manager shall consider the appeal within 15 business days from the date 
of the City’s receipt of the appeal. The City Manager may, at the City Manager’s 
sole discretion: 

a. Remand the matter back to the Ordinance Enforcement Officer for 
reconsideration; 

b. Grant the request on appeal, with or without conditions; or 

c. Deny the request on appeal. 

The City Manager shall issue a written Notice of Decision regarding the appeal. The 
City Manager’s decision is final. 

 



 
2019 Regis Street Improvement Project   Page 1 of 2  
April 1, 2019 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick, P.E., Public Works Director 
 
DATE:   April 1, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  Award of Contract for 2019 Regis Street Improvement Project 
  
     
ISSUE 
Acceptance of bid and award of contract for street improvements on Regis Street from First 
Avenue to Gardner Avenue to American Underground LLC in the amount of $512,235.61. 
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 
1. Minutes from Bid Opening & Bid Tabulation Sheet – March 28, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The project includes, but is not limited to, all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to 
construct approximately 11,400 square feet of cold plane pavement removal, 1,740 ton of ACP, 
22 ADA sidewalk ramps complete, 1,470 square feet of concrete walks, 23 water service 
connections, 110 lineal feet of 8” D.I. water main, 3 hydrant assemblies, 3 catch basin removal 
and replacement, 33 street trees, and performance of additional and incidental work as called 
for in the Plans and Specifications.  The project must be completed no later than June 14, 2019. 

Public Works Director Lance S. Ludwick and Senior Engineering Technician Michael Schmidt 
developed a bid packet including specifications for the overlay project work. 
 
The project was advertised competitively in the Daily Journal of Commerce and sealed bids 
were opened on March 28, 2019, at 11:00 a.m. 
 



 
2019 Regis Street Improvement Project   Page 2 of 2  
April 1, 2019 

BIDS RECEIVED 
The City received bids from the following firms: 
 

 Contractor Total 
1 American Underground LLC $ 512,235.61 

2 Knife River Corporation $ 649,950.20 

3 North Santiam Paving Company $ 536,169.00 
 
STAFF RECOMENDATION 
City Staff reviewed the low bid and recommends the City award the contract to American 
Underground LLC at this time. 
 
OPTIONS 

1) Award of Contract to the lowest responsible bidder in the full contract amount. 
 

2) Reject all bids. 
          
MOTION 
Move to award the 2019 Regis Street Improvement Project to American Underground LLC in 
the amount of $512,235.61. 



 

       Ci t y  o f  S t a yt on  
Department of Public Works 

362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 
Phone: (503) 769-2919 • Fax (503) 769-2134 

 

   
THE CITY OF STAYTON IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER AND SERVICE PROVIDER 

POLICE 
386 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3423 
 FAX (503) 769-7497 

PLANNING 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2998 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

PUBLIC WORKS 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2919 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

WASTEWATER 
950 JETTERS WAY 

STAYTON, OR 97383 
(503) 769-2810 

FAX (503) 769-7413 

LIBRARY 
515 N. FIRST AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3313 
FAX (503) 769-3218 

 

 
 

BID OPENING: REGIS STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
March 28, 2019, Closed at 11:00 AM 

 
Description:  The project includes, but is not limited to, all labor, materials, and 
equipment necessary to construct approximately 11,400 square feet of cold plane 
pavement removal, 1.740 ton of ACP, 22 ADA sidewalk ramps complete, 1470 square 
feet of concrete walks, 23 water service connections, 110 lineal feet of 8” D.I. water 
main, 3 hydrant assemblies, 3 catch basin removal and replacement, 33 street trees, and 
performance of additional and incidental work as called for in the Plans and 
Specifications. 

 

CONTRACTOR BID AMOUNT 
American Underground LLC $ 512,235.61 
Knife River Corporation $ 649,950.20 
North Santiam Paving Co. $ 536,169.00 

 
 
The City of Stayton will review the bids and make a recommendation to the City Council 
at their April 1, 2019, council meeting. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Lisa Meyer, City of Stayton 





 
Water Treatment Plant - Slow Sand Filter Resanding Project Page 1 of 2  
April 1, 2019 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick, P.E., Public Works Director 
 
DATE:   April 1, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  Award of Contract for Water Treatment Plant - Slow Sand 

Filter Resanding Project 
  
     
ISSUE 
Acceptance of bid and award of contract for the resanding of the slow sand filter at the Water 
Treatment Plant Pond No. 1 to Big River Construction in the amount of $579,900.00. 
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 
1. Minutes from Bid Opening & Bid Tabulation Sheet – March 28, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The project includes, but is not limited to, all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to 
remove and stockpile 1-foot of existing sand (1,615 tons) from the Stayton Water Treatment 
Plant Pond No.1, and install 2.5 feet (4,400 tons) of approved sand into the No. 1 pond, thence 
reinstall 1-foot of removed sand on top of the new sand. All other performance of additional 
work as called for in the Plans and Specifications shall be considered incidental.  All new sand 
will need to meet the specifications outlined in these contract documents and be approved by 
the City and the Oregon Health Authority prior to delivery and placement.  The project must be 
completed no later than June 21, 2019. 

Public Works Director Lance S. Ludwick developed a bid packet including specifications for the 
resanding project. 
 
The project was advertised competitively in the Daily Journal of Commerce and sealed bids 
were opened on March 28, 2019, at 2:00 p.m. 
 



 
Water Treatment Plant - Slow Sand Filter Resanding Project Page 2 of 2  
April 1, 2019 

BIDS RECEIVED 
The City received bids from the following firms: 
 

 Contractor Total 
1 Big River Construction $579,900.00 

2 Just Bucket Excavating $609,597.23 

3 Knife River Corporation $628,103.35 
4 McClure & Sons, Inc. $698,200.00 

 
STAFF RECOMENDATION 
City Staff reviewed the low bid and recommends the City award the contract to Big River 
Construction at this time. 
 
OPTIONS 

1) Award of Contract to the lowest responsible bidder in the full contract amount. 
 

2) Reject all bids. 
          
MOTION 
Move to award the Water Treatment Plant - Slow Sand Filter Resanding Project to Big River 
Construction in the amount of $579,900.00. 



 

       Ci t y  o f  S t ay t on  
Department of Public Works 

362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 
Phone: (503) 769-2919 • Fax (503) 769-2134 

 

   
THE CITY OF STAYTON IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER AND SERVICE PROVIDER 

POLICE 
386 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3423 
 FAX (503) 769-7497 

PLANNING 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2998 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

PUBLIC WORKS 
362 N. THIRD AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-2919 
FAX (503) 767-2134 

WASTEWATER 
950 JETTERS WAY 

STAYTON, OR 97383 
(503) 769-2810 

FAX (503) 769-7413 

LIBRARY 
515 N. FIRST AVENUE 
STAYTON, OR 97383 

(503) 769-3313 
FAX (503) 769-3218 

 

 
 

BID OPENING:  WATER TREATMENT PLANT – SLOW SAND FILTER 
RESANDING PROJECT 

March 28, 2019, Closed at 2:00 PM 
 
Description:  The project includes, but is not limited to, all labor, materials, and 
equipment necessary to remove and stockpile 1-foot of existing sand (1,615 tons) from 
the Stayton Water Treatment Plant Pond No. 1, and install 2.5 feet (4,400 tons) of 
approved sand into the No. 1 pond, thence reinstall 1-foot of removed sand on top of 
the new sand.  All other performance of additional work as called for in the Plans and 
Specifications shall be considered incidental.  All new sand will need to meet the 
specifications outlined in these contract documents and be approved by the City and the 
Oregon Health Authority prior to delivery and placement.  

 

CONTRACTOR BID AMOUNT 
Big River Construction $ 579,900.00 
Just Bucket Excavating $ 609,597.23 
Knife River Corporation $ 628,103.35 
McClure & Sons, Inc. $ 698,200.00 

 
 
The City of Stayton will review the bids and make a recommendation to the City Council 
at their April 1, 2019, council meeting. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Lisa Meyer, City of Stayton 



Est. Qty Unit Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit 
Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit 

Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit 
Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit 

Price

1 Mobilization 1 LS  $              57,500.00  $        57,500.00 73,658.56$              73,658.56$         13,192.00$         13,192.00$         35,000.00$         35,000.00$         
2 Remove and Replace Existing Sand Media 1 LS  $              34,000.00  $        34,000.00 23,250.67$              23,250.67$         83,479.35$         83,479.35$         100,000.00$       100,000.00$       
3 Furnish and Place New Sand Media 4400 Tons  $                   111.00  $       488,400.00 116.52$                   512,688.00$       120.78$              531,432.00$       128.00$              563,200.00$       

 Total Bid Price  $  579,900.00  Total Bid Price  $  609,597.23  Total Bid  $  628,103.35  Total Bid  $  698,200.00 

Bid Item Name

Big River Construction, Inc. Just Bucket Excavating Knife River Corporation McClure & Sons, Inc.

City of Stayton Water Treatment Plant - Slow Sand Filter Resanding Project
Bid Tabulation 
Bid Date: 3/28/2019 2:00 PM


	CITY OF STAYTON
	M E M O R A N D U M
	FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



